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Sir,

I would like to draw your attention to the fact that the Staff Report of the House Permanent Select
Committee on Intelligence, Subcommittee on Intelligence Policy, dated 23 August 2006, entitled
“Recognizing Iran as a Strategic Threat: An Intelligence Challenge for the United States”, contains
some erroneous, misleading and unsubstantiated information.

The caption under the photograph of the Natanz site on page 9 of the report states that “Iran is
currently enriching uranium to weapons grade using a 164-machine centrifuge cascade”. In this
regard, please be informed that information about the uranium enrichment work being carried out at
the Pilot Fuel Enrichment Plant (PFEP) at Natanz, including the 3.6% enrichment level that had been
achieved by Iran, was provided to the IAEA Board of Govemors by the Director General in
April 2006 (see GOV/2006/27, paragraph 31). The description of this enrichment level as
“weapons grade” is incorrect, since the term “weapon-grade” is commonly used to refer to uranium
enriched to the order of 90% or more in the isotope of uranium-235. The Director General’s
April 2006 report, as well as all of his other reports on the implementation of the safeguards in Iran,

are posted on the IAEA’s website at http://www.iaea.org/NewsCenter/Focus/laealran.

The first bullet on page 10 states that “Iran had covertly produced the short-lived radioactive element
polonium-210 (Po-210), a substance with two known uses; a neutron source for a nuclear weapon and
satellite batteries”. The use of the phrase “covertly produced” is misleading because the production of
Po-210 is not required to be reported by Iran to the IAEA under the NPT safeguards agreement
concluded between Iran and the IAEA (published in IAEA document INFCIRC/214). (Regarding the
production of Po-210, please refer to the report provided to the Board of Governors by the
Director General in November 2004 (GOV/2004/83, paragraph 80)).

Furthermore, the IAEA Secretariat takes strong exception to the incorrect and misleading assertion in
the Staff Report’s second full paragraph of page 13 that the Director General of the IAEA decided to
“remove” Mr. Charlier, a senior safeguards inspector of the IAEA, “for allegedly raising concerns
about Iranian deception regarding its nuclear program and concluding that the purpose of Iran’s
nuclear programme is to construct weapons”. In addition, the report contains an outrageous and
dishonest suggestion that such removal might have been for “not having adhered to an unstated IAEA
policy barring IAEA officials from telling the whole truth about the Iranian nuclear program”.

In this regard, please be advised that all safeguards agreements concluded between a State and the
IAEA in connection with the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons require the IAEA to
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secure acceptance by the Stte of the desigmation of IAEA safeguards inspectors, before such
mspectors may be sent 1o the State on inspection (INFCIRC/153 (Corr. ), poregraphs 9 and 85). Under
such agreements, each State has the nght to abject 1o the designation of any safeguards nspector, ind
o request the withdrawal of the designation of on inspeclor, at sny time, for that State
(hip:/iwww.inen orgPublications/DocumentwInfcires).  Accordingly, Iran’s  request 1o the
Director General 1o withdraw the designation of Mr, Charlier authorizing him to carry out sufeguards
mapections n lran, was based on puragraph (s)ii) of Article 9 and paragraph (d) of Article 85 of lran's
Safeguards Agroement. | should also like to note bere that Iran has accepled the designation of more
than 200 Agency safeguards inspectors, which number is similar 1o that accepled by the majority of
non-nuclesr-weapon Staies that have concluded safepguards agreements pursuant to the NPT.

Finally, it is also regrettable that the Staff Report did not take into sccount the views of the United
Nations Secunity Council, a5 exprossed in resolution 1696 (2006), which infer alia, “commends und
encournges the Director General of the IAEA and its secretarial for their ongming professional and
impartinl efforts to resolve all remaining outstanding issues in Irmn within the framewark of the
Agency”,

While 11 is unfortunite that the authors of the Stafl Report did not consult with the IAEA Secreturiat o
verily the correctness of the above relerenced information, the IAEA Secretariat stands ready 0 assist
your Commitiee in correcting the ermoneous and misleading information contained in the report.

Yours singerely,
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